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1. Name of Property

historic name Cﬁntezlnwnshlpwetade_&_ﬂlghﬁghgol :
other names/site number  Mays Elementary Schoal | e 139-391-07024

2. Location

street & number 929 East South Street

city or fown

N/A {1 not for pubiication
Mavs - vicinity

N/a . O
state . Indiana code .IN . county Rush code 139 zip code 46155 :

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify thatthis () nomination

7] 'request for determination of eligibifity meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of

‘iHistoric Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36CFR Part 60. in my opinion, the property
Kmeets [ dpes not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considerad significant

{7 nationally statewig) B loc See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

‘ - - \J
Slgnaiufof cert)ylng official/Title U \' ¢ Date

diana/Department of Natural Resources
State_or\'\edera/aqencv and bureau

Tin me opinion, the propeny [ meets [} _éloes not meet the National Register criteria. { [ See continuation sheet for additional ‘
comments.) ) ’

Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

| hereby cerlify that the property'is:
{_lentered in the Nationai Register.
[] See continuation sheet.

Signaﬁjre of the Keeper Date of Action

[] determined eligible for the . '
Naticnal Register ' '

] See continuation sheet.

[] determined not eligible for the
National Register

[1 removed from the National Register
"] other, (explain:)




Genter Township Grade & HighScheel
Name of Property

Rusho . IN
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property

{Check as many boxes as apply) {Check only one box)
[] private building
4 public-local ] district
] public-State [ ]site
[ | public-Federal [ i structure
[ ] object
[ landscape

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

liana's Public ¢ e Liah School

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously lisied resources in the count

Contributing Noncontributing

1 0 buildings
0 sites

0 0 structures
0 1 objects

1 1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

EDUCATION: School EDUCATION: School
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materials

(Enter categories frem instructions)

_19th & 20th ¢. REVIVALS:  Classical Revival

_ 19th & 20th ¢c. AMER.:  Prairie School

Narrative Description

(Enter categories from instructions)

foundaton __ CONCRETE

walls BRICK
STONE: Limestone
roof ASPHALT
other GLASS
QOTHER

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on oneg or mere continuation sheets,)
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Significance
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property (Enter categories from instructions)

for Nationai Register listing.) ARCHITECTURE

A Property is associated with events that have made EDUCATION

a significant contriibution to the broad patterns of

our history.

[ 1B Property is associated with the lives of persons

significant in our past.

K C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or

represents the work of a master, or possesses . L
high artistic values, or represents a significant and Period of Significance
distinguishable entity whose components lack 1929-1953

individual distinction.

L 1D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information impottant in prehistory or history. Significant Dates

N/A

Criteria Considerations

(Mark "x" in ali the boxes that apply.}

Property is:

1A owned by a religious institution or used for

religicus purposes. Significant Person

{Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

"[C1B  removed from its original location. N/A
[1c a birthplace or grave. Cultural Affiliation
[1Db a cemetery. N/A
'E a recenstructed building, object, or structure.
C1F a commemeorative property.
[ 1G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance Architect/Builder

within the past 50 years.

Werking, Charles E & Paul R
Anderson, A E
Narrative Statement of Significance Beel Brothers

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheats.)

9. Major Bibliographic References

Bibliography
(Cite the books, articles, a_nd other.sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)
Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:
L] C;:)’[__eg{irg%a;y dgterminationiofd individual listing (36 I State Historic Preservation Office
as been requeste
(] previously listed in the National Register [] Other State agency
Ll W@&i@f@f]y determined eligible by the National ~ [IFederal agency
[] designated a National Historic Landmark [ Local government
Uni it
[ | recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey L1 University
# [ ] Other

(] recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #

Name of repository:




Rush N
County and State

Name of Property
10. Geographical Data

Acreageof Property ________3Dacres

UTM References (Place additional UTM references cn a continuation sheet.)

1 6| [6[34610 | 4400090 3 BN |
Q# ‘Elst|ing§ | t ‘ | Ec!rtiiné t ‘ Zone 1 Easting L ‘ . No)‘thilng! \ | ‘
2 L Sl o L b el

D "See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation shest.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Judy K Cowling

organization Cowling Preservations ____________ date (8-27-2003

street & number 504 South Main Street telephone 765/661-6189
Fairmount state IN... zipcode 46928-1930

city or town

Additional Documentation

Submi the fo lowmg Tems with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items}

Property Owner
{Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPQ.)

name Mark Van Natta; Rush County Schools
street & number 330 West 8th Stireet telephone 765/932-4186

cityortown  Rushville state 1N zipcode 46173

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is baing collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properiies and to amend existing listings. Response to:this request is reguired to obtain
a benefitin accordance with the National Histeric Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 ef seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instrisctions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form ta the Chief, Administrative Services Divisicn, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013.7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503,
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DESCRIPTION:

Mays Elementary School Architectural Description.

The Center Township Grade and High Schocl, Mays, Indhana, 15 a large, two and a hailf story, massed, red
brick bulding with a flat-topped hip roof, wide overhanging eaves, triple-hung windows, sparse stone and
brick detailing, and a concrete foundation (photo 1). The first and second story window openings have a
soldier arch and a stone sill. The basement windows have a concrete sil and are topped by a soldier string-
course on alt elevations of the mam bullding, but not on the gymnaswm. Brick 1s laid in a2 common bond
pattern. Only the school ang a non-contributing totem pole are located in the boundary.

Site: The school sits on a large grassy lot with a gravel parking lot to the west (photo 2), concrete slabs
directly m front of the bulding on the north elevation and in the southeast corner (between school building
and gymnasiwm) and playground on the east {photo 3). Concrete walks lead from each entrance. A con-
crete sidewalk edges the bulding on the north and west elevations, and a long straight concrete walk runs
from the center of the bulding to the rozd on the north side leads to the gravel passenger drop-off. A large
grassy area 15 to the south {(photo 4). Beyond the west gravel parking fot the school owns a ballpark. A
contemporary timber edged, gravel and stepping-stone path leads to the flagpole and small flowerbed on
the west side of the north elevation. The grade 1s shightly gher on the south lawn and slopes to the east.
The setting for the school 15 decidedly rural. Bordering the north side of the school building 1s the residen-
tial and business community, farm fields are on east and south sides. Remnants of an old canning factory
remam i the view shed to the west. Several large trees stand both north and south of the school, and
several young trees have been planted.

Exteror Description
An asphait shingle, flat-topped hp roof, covers the building. Gutters and corner rectangular shaped down-
spouts are present on all elevations of the man bulding, but rot on the gymnaswm. A centrally located

brick chimney has a concrete cap (photo 5). The gymnasium on the south elevation has barrel vault roof
(photo 4).

All the ongmal third and second story large rectangular, triple-hung windows were replaced with triple hung
aluminum windows: two upper blind-sashes are a reddish-brown laminate and the lower sash 15 glass, The
double-hung basement windows have glass in both sashes. Replacement windows occupy the onginal open-
Ings. and the arrangement retains the original design intent. The third and second story windows are topped

with a soldier arch header. The basement windows abut the brick stringcourse. Exceptions to this wil be
noted.

North fagade: The primary feature of the flat fagade 15 a slightly projecting center gable bisecting the flat-
topped hipped roof (photol). Octagonal louvered cupola with octagonal roof and spire 1s centered on the
ridge of the center gable (rhoto 5). It 15 a component of the onginal still-functional ventilation system. An

oval opening 15 centered n the gable and 15 surrounded by bricks set on end (salor) with stone keystones at
12,3, 6 and 9 o'dock.

Windows on the north fagade are symmetrically placed. From east to west there are eighteen bays. Eight
equidistant bays are arranged under the center gable. On each side of the eight-bay center gable, single
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‘windows are arranged five bays. Second story bays {1, |12 and |4 have a window air-concditioner. In base-
ment story bay 2, a fan set i laminate filis the entire opening, bays 3 and 7 each have an arr-conditioner i the
lower sash, bay 5 has a vent in the vpper sash, bays |1, | 2, and | 3 have a lovvered metal cover. Refer to
the tabie in appendix A identifying the windows from east to west.

There are two narrow ventilation openings above the second story windows i bays 6 and 13, The opemng in
bay & 15 covered with laminate and the bay 13 opening 15 covered with a metal louver panel.

The primary entrances on the north facade, \dentiied above as bays 4 and | 5, are on either side of the center
gable (photo 6). Four steps with a centered pipe handral lead up to the cement landina of the recessed
porch. The entry s decorated with stone Doric engaged pilasters topped with a stone entablature 1dentifying
the bulaing as Cenfer Twe. Grade € High School and a fiat topped stone cap. Atop the stone cap rests a
decoratwve wrought iron plece of vertical raling with diagonal rails bisecting a center diamond. Double entry
doors each have a lower metal panel and an upper glass panel. A metal panel has replaced the glass transom.

fast Elevation

The overhanging eve, inear appearance of the banks of windows and otherwise plain east elevation evokes the
simple Prame style much more than the primary north fagcade (photo 3). Windows and the brick stringcourse
Just above the basement windows are the only decoration. There are ten bays of windows. Progressing north
to south, ali but bay four in the third story has a single trple hung window. The second story trigle hung
windows are present in all but bay six. The window n bay six 15 also the only missing opening in the basement.
Variation of basement windows incluges a vent centered in a lammate panel in bay one, and an air conditioner
replaces the iower sash in bays two and mne. Narrow vents above the second story windows at bays one, five
and eleven and basement bays one and eleven are closed with a laminate panel.

The east elevation of the gymnasium is also visible (photo 3). Its plam large brick surface ts broken by four
openngs. From north o south are two nearly square double-hung windows high on the wall, 2 double metal
door, and a triple hung window halfway between top and bottom of the wall at the south end. The concrete
foundation 15 detercrating, as 15 the smooth concrete finsh coat.

South Elevation:

The barrei-vaulted gymnasium 1s the primary feature on the south elevation (photo 4). It 15 designed as an
integral part of the bulding rather than an addition. it projects from the rear of the school and spans the area
corresponaing to the projecting north gable. East and west end hip-extensions shightly project from the school
bulding toward the south. Each hip-extension contans a star hall and a corresponding triple-hung window
above double entry doors. The metal-frame doors have two glass panels with 2/3 surface above and 1/3
surface below the dwiding rail.  The metai-frame glass transom above has a center vertical rail, The east exten-
sion has three basement windows. An air conditioner rests on the large concrete pad, and it 15 surrounded by a
chain-hnk fence. The west extension has two windows. n {929, a large door was built to allow access to the
basement shop room. The door was subsequently removed and the wall bricked (photo 2). The south eleva-
tion of the gymnasium s an extremely plain brick wall with a double exit door centered on the wall. A founda-
tion metal-covered opening 15 located each end of the foundation wall.
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West Elevation:

The West elevation (photo 7) 15 virtually a mirror 1mage of the east elevation with the following additions:
There 15 a bell n the center of bay six n the second story, and a water spigot in the center of bay six in the
basement story. Where the sidewalk abuts the foundation, tar 15 apphed to the lower wall of the foundaton.

The west elevation of the gymnasium s also a mirror image of the east elevation (photo 2). The one excep-
tion 1= a single concrete step under the double exit doors.

Interior Description

The school bullding has a central hall {photo 8) that runs parallel to the bulding’s front (north) elevation and 1s
accessible from erther end of shorter, perpendicular hallways. n essence the first floor of the three-story

school 15 laid out m an H with the center hall iocated on the horizontal axis (east-west), and bemng at least

twice the length of the vertical axes (north-south). The first floor has two entrances on the front fagade
(north elevation) each of which are located on the vertical axes of the M. Corresponding rear entrances are
located on the south end of the north-south haliways. The bullding has three finished floors and an unfinished
attic. The basement and third floor have south star halls only. The basement 15 partially below grade. A

barrel-vaulted gymnasivm on the south elevation s at grade; one must go up or down the man stairways to
access the first floor or basement respectively.

The building’s original layout has chanaed only slightly. Two second floor rooms off the north-south halls
were altered to make two rooms by removing the walls between three rooms and constructing one stud wall.
The original three doorways remam intact. large north-side recoms on the first and second floors have been
subdivided to increase the number of classrooms. The historically significant intenor matemals are wood
(classroom and gymnasium floors, doors, trim, closets, charr rails) concrete (stars, hallway and basement
classroom floors), glazed brick (lower portion of hall and gymnaswum walls), metal (cellings, hght fixtures, door
hardware), and slate (blackboards). Alteration or concealment of onginal materals include fiberglass or acous-
tic celling tile that covers all the classroom celings, and carpet covering the original assembly room and
library floors. The two-color paint scheme in the classrooms indicates a picture ral has been removed. Each
north-south corndor classroom has a recessed area in the wall that it shares with the adjacent classroom. In
most rooms, the area has hooks for coats. In one case, ciosets were constructed (phote ©). Fach second
floor room also has a void in the wall that was part of the origmal ventilabion system (photo 10). Currently,
fluorescent tubes provide lighting. All the electrical wiring and boxes are surface mounted. Onginal compo-

nents of the heating system are still in place. For example, the rachator in the first floor southwest class-
room 15 imtact (photo | {).

The interor description of the school shall commence at the southwest entry. Entry inte the bulding s
through aluminum and glass double doors with vertically divided glass transom to a landing in the stair hall
that accesses the gym. The stars lead up to the first and second floors and down to the basement. Con-
crete starways have square posts, sguare metal balustrades topped with 2 natural fimish wood handrail and
metal trim on the leading edge of the concrete treads (photo 12). A round metal handral 15 attached to
the wall.  All the metal and concrete 15 panted gray. A B4-inch high wall of alazed tan brick topped with
alternating brown and tan salor course follows the incline of the starr from basement to the second floor.
The upper halt of the wall 15 painted plaster. The decorative tin celling 15 composed of cove molding,
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crosshatched celing edging, border and center with square recessed panels. The starway hall can be
completely closed from the school’s north-south halls by a set of double entry doors, sidelights and tran-
som. Each component has wood framing with divided hghts. (fransom six across, corners two across,
sidelights five up, doors five up) (photo | 3). In fact, this interior entryway 15 repeated at each of the four
entry points on the north-scuth first floor hallways and the second floor south hallways. The basement also
could be closed off from the star hall, but all that remains 1s the wood jambs as the doors have been re-
moved. The basement entry has no transom or sidelights.

Gymnasium:

Two single door entries (doors have two flat recessed panels below three pared divided lights) nto the
6,555 square foot gymnaswm are directly off the landing in both the east and west star halls (photo | 4).
The gym playing floor 15 oriented east-west, the stage 15 on the south wall (photo | 5). The bleachers are on
the north wall and within the footprint of the rectanguiar schoot bulding. Bulding matenals vsed throughout
the school are continued in the gym. Glazed brick covers the lower 71 -inches of the wall surface, and
fronts the 53 inch wall in front of the bleachers (photo | 4). The flat celling above the bleachers 15 corru-
gated tm. Two bow-arch won trusses support the barrel-vaulted ceilling above the playing floor (photo 15).
The stage 15 surrounded by eleven square, gold-panted plaster medallions with a center floral motif and
edged in eqgqg and dart molding. Docrs on both sides of the stage lead to five wood steps that ascend the
stage. The wood rang-wall 15 car-siding. The walls are glazed brick, the celling 1s full height and a triple-
hung window on the east and west walls provide natural light. A large blower s mounted on the wall on
both sides of the stage. The dent:fication plate says “The Movement, Buckeye Blower Company, Colum-
bus, Ohio™. It 1s vented to the gymnasium with grates 23 Ve-inch high by 58-inch long set low and mgh on
the wall. The mechanism for stage curtains 15 also extant.

Ten rows of bleachers are on the north wall. The fixed onginal wood bieachers are supported by wood
blocks and the rsers are also wood. Center steps separate the bleachers into two sections, and there are
aiso aisles on the each side. Vented walls are situated at the rear corners of the bleachers. A wood
trimmed plaster wall foreshortens the width of the bleachers for the first six rows on both sides, and ends
with a decorative wood post. The other side of the wall 15 glazed brick. The walls create two short halls
from the gymnasium entry doors to the back of the bleachers that provides access to a storage room and
boys and qirls locker rooms and an office. The locker room walls and showers are finished with onginal
glazed brick walls and small, unglazed tile floors (photo 16). Heat 15 supplied by celing mounted rachators.
The west locker room also has a small room under the bleachers. There are wood benches and no door.
The FPhysical Education mstructor’s office 15 the under the west end bleachers. The door has been cut into a
Dutch door. Ten opaque white globes hung over the bleachers, and sixteen down lghts over the playing
floor provide ight i the aym. Five are mounted on each bow-arch truss and six are mounted on the celing.
Additional ight comes from four double-hung metal replacement windows; there are two on both east and
west walls. The lower sash 15 alass, and the upper sash has a laminate panel.

Basement
The basement is accessible by east and west stairways. |t s nine steps from the landing down the
doublewide cement stair to the basement. The basement design mantains the same layout and surface
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fimishes described in paragraph one of this interior description. The north-south halls have classrooms on the
west end hall and cafeteria on the east end hall, and the east-west hall contains building service utilities.
Several features common to all the basement areas are these: |) the service pipes are mounted (exposed)
below the celing, and 2) the lower 70-inches of the “public area” walls are made of glazed brick, and 3) all
the rooms have modern “chalk” boards rather than black chalk boards. The first classroom on the west end
hall 15 the now the music room, but originally was the shop classroom. A garage door bullt into the south-
west exterior wall permitted vehicles to be brought into the classroom (photo 2): the door has been re-
moved and the opening closed with a brick wall (photo | 7). Onginally there was a second shop room to the
north that was accessible by a doublewide opemng in the wall (photo 18). The opening has been blocked
with vertical paneling, and the room 1s now the art room. Original storage rooms on the north side of the
art rooms were created with wood panels. A door on the east side of the art room leads mto a storage
room under the first floor north stairs.

The east-west center hall has operings on the north side only. The south wall has coat hooks mounted on
long spans of wood plank. A support wall bisects the hall near the center pont. On the north side (west to
east) 15 the boys restroom, custodian office/ boler room, office and laundry room, teachers lounge and girls
restroom. The workrooms walls are unglazed brick, and have pressed metal cellings. Along the north wall,
there are several openings into a low-ceiling area containing the coal chute, and ventilation shaft. On the
north wall, at the east end of the hall, the onginal concession stand opening remains intact (photo 19). [L 13
divided symmetrically into three sections, the center section being slightly larger. 1t 15 closed by wood
panels affixed on the cafetena side. The cafetena entrance in the east north-south hall lies just beyond the
centrai hall. The cafetera s dwvided nte two sections by a very wide passageway (photo 20). The north
stde 15 used for food preparation and serving; the dinning rocm s on the south side.

First Fioor

Ascending the west stair and through the double doors brings one into the west first floor north-south hall.
Directly to the west (left) 15 a doorway into a classroom. The description of this classroom s representative
of the other classrooms in the bulding except where specfic features are noted to be difierent (photos
21land 22). The classroom door 1s a wood door with five vertical sets of two divided bights. The hardware
is unvarnished brass, and consists of a push plate, turn lock and door stop on the interor of the door. The
extenor hardware includes a door pull, key lock, second key lock and hydraulic hinge. The interor walis are
painted plaster and have wood baseboards and wood chair-rail.  The ceiling 15 covered with acoustic tiles; it
15 not clear if the onigmal pressed tin celling has been removed or 15 covered by the acoustic tiles. The floor
15 narrow-plank woed. Flucrescent lighting s suspended from the ceiling. A bank of windows on the exterior
(west) wall has glazed tile sills and triple-hung aluminum replacement windows. The north wall separates this
south classroom from the north classroom at the end of the hall. A recessed area in the middie of the wall
has coat hooks. The open space 15 also used for storage, and there are closets. Original chalkboards, lo-
cated on the south and east walls, are in good condition.  The buiding 15 heated with a radiant hot water
system. The radiator in this classroom 1s an oniginal piece of equipment, bearng the name “Heatoven,
System of Unit Heating £ Ventilating, The Buckeye Biower Company, Columbus, Chic™ (photo 9).  The
radiant colls are contained within a plain metal box with a iouvered iid and a small screen centered n the
bottom front.
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The classroom at the north end of the hall 15 a mirror 1mage of the south classroom. Between the north and
south classrooms 1s a storage area accessible from the hallway. it has a five-panel door and ongmal hard-
ware. Currently it s used for janitor storage.

A remarkable feature on the west hall 1s a display case located on the south side of the east sidelight of the
north doorway (photo 23). The case 15 the width of the sidelight and the length 15 one and a half times the

width. Access to the three interior shelves s by the hinged sidelight at the rear. The north star hall leads
down to the double entry doors.

The doorway along the west north-south hallway 1s the office, located on the east side of the north end of
the hall, in the star hall. The office was originally one room. {t contains two desks, an original vault (photo
24), a closet and has an opening nto what 1s now the principal’s office. An mside label identifies the vauvit
manufacturer as the Schwab Safe Co., Lafayette, IN., USA, and further states it has a “relocking device on
safes”. The patent date 15 26" July 192!, It1s opened with a combination dlal and lever handle. The floor
of the vault 15 narrow strip wood and there are wood shelves on three walls. The closet also has a wood
floor and shelves, The office flocor 15 carpeted. The char ral 15 a replacement of the ongnal rall. The room
also contains an onginal cupboard with double doors and recessed panel doors, with a center ral in each
door. Above the cupboard s a shelf with small cubicles four across and seven down. The principal’s office

has been created out of a larger room on the north side of the east-west hall. It has no signihcant histor-
cal features.

Proceeding eastward down the east-west hall, there are no openings on the south wall because that s the
rear wall of the gymnasiwm, The north wall has three openings. The hirst, at the west end, 15 the Reading
Room, the second 15 the Head Start classroom, and the third, on the east end, 15 the Sick room. Each of
these rooms has ancther room on the north side. It appears that the Reading Room and the Head Start
room were onginally desigred to be one large room because the baseboards are different and the char rail
15 absent on the east wall of the Reading Room. There 15, however, a blackboard identical in design to the
original boards (photo 25); so, the alteration was made very early on. A later aiteration was the nstallation
of a wood panel wall that divides the room north and south.  Ongmal cupbeards are built in the south wall
(photo 25). The north partition 1s further subdivided to create two rooms. The west room 15 the
principal’s office. The east room 15 a workroom. The Head Start room has not been altered except for the
early addition of the wall described above. There are two doors in the east wall. One leads nto a closet,
the other s blocked, but opened into the Sick room. The Sick room 15 much narrower than the two rooms
Just described. it has a sink and a door on the north wall. The door opens mto a tolet room. It contans
oramal wall scones although 15 actually It by florescent ighting.

Turning into the east north-south hallway, the primary differences are the absence of a display case and
absence of any openings i the stair hall. The east side of the hall has the same layout as the west hall: two
classrooms with a janitor closet between them. The notable difference n the classrooms 15 in the north
classroom that was onenally the home economics room. A row of eight closets with a three-way mirror in
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the middle are in place of the recessed opening vsed for storage in the other classrooms (photo ). All the
closets retan the original hardware: a brass knob on a plate with keyhole, and two hinges. The unique hinge
feature 15 that the hinge 1s surface-mounted the exterior of the door. Other features of the home economics
classrocom that remains are the sink and cupboards on the west wall (photeo 26).

The second floor description will commence at the southwest stairway door. The primary change in the
layout of the second floor 1s the three second floor rooms off the north-south halls that were altered to
make two rooms. This was done by removing the two walls between the three rooms and constructing one
stud wall. The oniginal three doorways remain intact; one door 1s in the stair hail, and two doors are in the
hall. The rcems are approxmately the same size as the classrooms on the first floor end hallways. The other
difference 1s that there 1s no recessed storage area in the wall between the classrooms. In aill other re-
spects the finish and detal of the rooms 15 identical to the classrooms previously described.

The east-west hall has the same fimsh as the first floor kall but for the lockers built into the walls and a fixed
metal attic ladder. The northeast end lockers are a bank of single units; all the other lockers are stacked
two high. The south side lockers on the east and center hall appear to be replacements of the original
lockers (photo 27). There s a picture-ral molding along the north side of the hall at about the height of the
top of the doors. There are two doorways on each side of the hall. The north side of the hallway onginaliy
contamed the library and the assembly room. These rooms have been altered to make three rooms: a
tutoral room (the onginal brary), and two classrooms. The origmal interior windows and doors comprising
the bbrary remain intact, but the windows and the door-lights are covered with white masonite board {(photo
28). The woeod floors are covered with gray short-loop carpet.

The two rooms on the south side of the hall are above the bieachers n the gym. Currently the west room 15
the computer lab and the east room is the hibrary. The computer room has three rows of computers. The
northwest corner of the room 1s foreshortened by a 20 degree angle in the hall, An interior closet made of
faux wood paneling 15 on the west wall. The library 15 unremarkable except for a carpeted floor. Each room
has five aluminum trigle hung replacement windows.

Mays Scheool Statement of Significance

The Center Township Grade and High School meets Criterta A in architecture and C in education for hsting
in the National Register of Historic Places. Constructed in 1229, of three remaining consolidated Rush
County historic high schools it 15 the most intact. The Center Townshiz Grade and tligh School has
played a significant role m the culture and education of residents of Northern Rush County and serves as a
significant reminder of the robust development of public education that dechned at the start of the De-
pression. These larger schools played a significant role in the expansion of the publc school system in
rural and urban indiana. Consolidation 15 one of several historic trends that reflect the transformation of
indiana from an agraran to an urban society. The outstanding condition, high degree of inteanty, and
charactenstic mix of styles during this period of educational transition makes it architecturally noteworthy.
The local education Advisory Board created this monument of cwvic and community pride by funding the
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weli-built school, and took credit for its creation on the plague just inside the front door. Center Townshp
Grade and IMigh School included the latest innovations m sanitation, plan, and orgamzation of school. Promi-
nent local architects often designed these significant third generation schools. This school 15 among the
most enduring works of its designer, C.E. Werking.

Mays, Indiana 15 the site of Center Township Grade and High School, which 15 now Mays Elementary School.
Mays 15 ten miles north of Rushviile and fifteen miles south of New Castle on State Road 3 n northern Rush
County. [t was laid out on 25" March | 884 by Samuel Kirkpatrick and Charles Thrawley along the ralroad
line between New Castie and Rushwvilie. Blacksmith shops, lumber yard and saw mill, stockyard shipping port,
slavahterhouse, and later a canning factory and fertiizer store provided services and jobs to the local
commumity and surrounding farms. Other services necessary to a thrving community were available i Mays:
three grocery stores, dry goods store, shoe store, livery stable, barbershop and post office. An active
Lions Club 15 near the site of an earlier Opera House that provided entertainment and held Farmer’s Institute
andg Farm Bureau meetings. A poolrcom also provided entertainment from 1210 - 1205, and in 1223,
was used as a schoolroom while the present school was under construction. The first bank was built in
1908 and operated until 2000. A Presbyterian Churchs the only church in Mays at present. Despite this
development the town’s quest for prospenty has been a struggle. By | 200, only 40 people lived in the
74-lot town. Population continues to increase reaching! 50 n 2000. The 2002 census hsts the population
at180. There s not a nucleus of essential businesses in Mays now, but there 1s a post office and the Lions
Club remains active,

Education

Center Township of Rush County had a complete district school system with ten schools located around the
township by 1897, (See illustration |.) The earhest documented school i Rush County was the 1822 log
cabin school bult by Dr. Witham B, Lavghin next to his home n Rushwile. Center Township followed n 18630
hirng Mr. Esham to teach school in David Price’s farmhouse.  In the ten years that followed, twelve other
schools were held in Center Township in bulldings ranging from a Baptist Meetinghouse te private homes and
purpose-bullt schoolhouses, Many of the buldings were log construction. The first frame schoolhouse was
constructed in 1844, Not cne of these early buldinas survives.  The 1816 State Constitution and an

| 824 act by the General Assembly supported the concept of education, but ncluded no method of funding
such endeavors. This encouraged the “subscrption” system of education into the | 850s whereby each

student paid a set amount to attend school. Indeed, that system was used in Rush County’s earbiest
schools.

Free schools were endorsed in an | 848 state referendum. Some financial relief, by way of tax-supported
county level common schocls, was passed by the General Assembly in | 849, A statewide education admin-
istration tierarchy was established with cwvil township trustees reporting to county superintendents who were
accountable to the State Superntendent of Public Instruction and State Board of Education. Responsibili-
ties were to include certification of teachers, mspection of schoois, and fiscal needs. Indiana continued to
promote the township school system and provide limited funding with the passage of the “school law™ in
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1652,

These mid- 19" century statewide educational events designed to foster education only sparked a tug-of-
war over funding, number and location of schools m Center Townstip. The defeat of a county education tax
in the 28" May | 853 referendum by a two-thirds majorty, while 79 percent of the voters wanted more
(ning) rather than fewer (seven) schools, led school trustees Jonn M. Hudelson, Javez Reeves, and G.F.
Sutton to declare they “could not conveniently estabiish schools at present.”  On 6™ February 1854,
school trustees agan defeated a motion to establish schools (by forty-six people who were both wiling and
able to buld schoothouses), instead opting to use the old schoolhouses a little longer.  Finally, on 24
April 1 854, schoo! trustees voted to build ewaht new frame houses at a cost of $370 each; construction
was completed two years later. Ten schoolhouses are documented | 859, and can be located on the
897 Rush County Center Townstip atlas. (See exhibit ) As each of these frame schoolhouses was
abandoned for education other uses were tound, including livestock shelters or gran storage. Some of the
bulldings were moved, and most met ther demise due to demolition by neglect or fire. Students desiring
to continue ther education had the option of county seminary erected at the southwest corner of Third
and Julian Street in Rushwille in 1 838, Later, the Farview Academy, four miles east of Rushville, opened its

doors to students n 1849. The Friends Academy at Carthage, a sectanan school, began in 1930 or
1931,

Rush County officals werzquick to adopt the consolidation trend. Two consolidated schools were bult in

1 902, Arlington served Fosey and Walker townships in west central Rush County. Arlmgton ongnally
served grades one to twelve. The massed brick bullding has a truncated hip roof, projecting central entry
ana 15 two stores tall with a partially underground basement. Additions were made to the bulding in 1925
and 1935. As of 1989, students attend kindergarten through sixth grade at Arlington. The bulding now
has replacement windows and doors.

Center Township tigh School was located west of State Road 3, about one mile west of Mays, Indiana, at
the site of school number 5. The | 9209 school was a massed brick bulding with a large projecting central
entry and bell tower. (See llustration 2.) Stringcourse detal was present at the ail level of the first and
second story windows. The school had two upper stories and a partially underground basement. The
single-story frame schoolhouse 15 visible in the backaround of a | 202 photogragh. Trustee Chester
Rhodes directed the construction of the Center Townshig High School and the demolition of the old one
teacher school. The first teacher/principal was Lot Hufferd. The four-year college preparatory course of
study at Center Migh School included algebra, geometry, botany, ghysics, Latin (three years), English {four
years), history and government {three years). Students had no cheice of classes, and took four subjects a
year. Initially, only grades one through eleven were offered. Students desiring grade twelve attended
Spiceland Academy in Henry County or High School in Rushwille.  The high school was remodeled n 1917
with the installation of chemical tolets and a heating plant. Since the Cwil War a ternitorial conflict raged
among residents in Center Township; the conflict extended to the school system. Students in Mays,
Inchana, approximately one mile west of Center High School, attended Raleigh High School in Washingten
Township six miles east of Mays. Raleigh was the result of conschdation of five one-teacher schoolhouses
in 1877. County histories claim that Raleigh School was the first graded school in indizna. (Gary and
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Thomas, [921; Brant and Fuller, 1888.) Local historians also believe Raleigh 1s the first consclidated
school in the Umted States. Informal searches by SHPO staff in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania and Ohio

are consstent with the clam. Unfortunately, only the bell tower and the front entrance of Raleigh School still
exist.

In 1912, a two-room brick elementary school was bullt in Mays to replace the one-teacher school number
six. (See llustrations 3 and 4.) The brick building was one story with a partially underground basement and
housed students in grades one through six. Quoins at the corners, a large overhanging eave and a classical
Creek entry with engaaed pilasters and engaged pediment adorned the buiiding.

Miiroy High School, bult m1 913, served Anderson, Richiand, Noble townships, and southern Rushvilie. The
brick building has two upper stores and a partially underground basement. Centrat projecting entries on each
elevation, a brick and stone cornice and a stone band above the basement windows adad detal to the other-
wise plan brick box. The bulding now has foundation plantings, cantilevered entry porches and replacement
windows and doors. Today it functions as an elementary school.

By 1920 —~ 1921 only three schools were left in Center Township, The Center School, the two-room
school at Mays. and the Shively’s Corner High School.  The Mays school continued to grow; in 1925 a
portable bulldmg was erected providing room for all the Center Township elementary students. Shively’s
Corner High School (number 4) was abandoned at that time. Jumor thigh School students joined the high
school students in the Center Township High School bulding in 1825.

The Center High School was in service until the present Center Township Grade and High School bullding was
completed at the site of the Mays Grade School. Eventually, the school was locally known as Mays High
School. During construction, classes were scattered throughout Center Township. Grades one and two
were held in a bullding in north Mays (See illustration 5.) Grades three through twelve were divided between
portable buiding at the Mays school and the abandon Shively’s Corner High School, which reopened tempo-
rarity. The furnace room and the teacher’s lounge of the new grade and mgh school were constructed in the
below grade rooms of the earher two-room brick Mays Grade school. The school served grades one through
twelve until | 964, when kindergarten was added. In 1266, the high school students from this Mays bulding
became a part of the Rushvile Consolidated High School, The junior ligh remaned at Mays for twe more
years, then under consolidation moved to the new Benjamm Rush Middle School in Rushville. in 1268 the
Mays school bullding had mmor alterations to accommodate kindergarten through sixth grade students, and
s still used for this purpose. The Mays School has mamtained a reputation of beng a good place to get an

education. The buiding 12 still vsed for community activities and an annual alumni gathering, and it serves as a
focal point for the community.

n a 1923 study. Fublic Education m Inchana, the cost of construction of each type of school (clementary,
secondary and combined) was gathered and analyzed. While not site specific, the trend of combining all
educational facilities within a township 15 evident. 83% of all combined schocls were in a township as com-
pared with aty and town locations. Rush County had three township combined schools, and one aty high
achooi i Rushwille. Today, however, Rush County operates only one high school for all county students. (The
Indiana Education Survey Commission, | 923.)
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Architecture:

Center Township Grade and thgh School, visible from the outskirts of town, 15 the largest, most prominent
bullding in Mays, indiana. The | 929 large brick buillding stands as a testament to the endurance of school
consolidation n Rush County in general and Center Township specifically. It was designed by architect
Werking & Son, Richmond, Indiana and built by contractors: E.A. Anderson, Beel Brothers, and Flatt & Ruby.

Charles E. Werking practiced architecture from about | 204 until at least | 947 with offices in southeast
Inciana. Werking's architectural career began after he taught school for one year. e studied architecture
through a erogram of the International Correspondence School, eventually becoming both a registered
architect and a registered engmeer in Inchana. At first he worked alone in Hagerstown, Indiana.  After
moving his practice to Richmond, Indiana n 1914 or 1215, he took on John W. Mueller for a short time.
The firm practiced under the name Mueller & Werking, Associated Architects & Engineers from about 1917
to 1219, when Mueller began practicing independently as J. W. Mueller & Co., Architects. Paul Revere
Werking joined his father’s renamed firm C. E. Werking 4 Son, Architects. Paul Revere Werking studied
architecture at Carnegie Institute of Technoloay about 1917, and he was a member of the Indiana Society
of Architects by 1923. For about four years, 1926 — 1930, Joseph Rudolgh Fallon, from Connerswville,
Inchana, jomed father and son. During the association the firm was calied Werking ¢ Son & Fzallon and later
(1929) Werking, Werking, Fallon Architects. Howsver, wher Fallon left to practice independently, the firm
reverted to C. E. Werking ¢ Son, Architects. At the age of 48, Paul R. Werking began taking on work
independently; he also worked with his father for at ieast three more years (1947).

Schools were a strong mterest for Werking and his associates. The Ball State University Drawings and
Documents Archive holds 22 Werking projects. includhing several notable schools. While this s not a com-
plete list, it contans several schools Werking designed withi the same timeframe as the Center Township
Grade and High School. The earliest school design on record i the Ball State Unversity Architecture
Archives 15 Dalton Township school, Hagerstown, Inchana, 191 1. As the consolidation trend grew,
Werking's commssions for school buillding’s increased. He designed at least cne school every three to four
years between 1211 and 1923, From 1926 — 1931 five school plans are in the archives, not including
Center Township Grade and High School. The 929 Milan Grade and High School, in Milan, Repley Courty,
Inchana, b£ars a strong resemblance to the Center Township Grade and Hiah School. The floor plan and
ventilation system and gymnasium design and location are extremely similar.  Unfortunately, the Milan school
was demolished in the |1 920s. Werking desianed the Oldenburg Grade and High School in Frankin County,

indiana m 193! . The lghly ornate school was dafferent in plan and style than either of the known 1929
schools.

During his career, the firms in which Werking was partnerfowner, designed more residences than any other
type of bullding. The promment Teetor famly of Hagerstown, Indiana was among Werking’s most loyal cli-
ents, commissioning several residences in southeast Indiana as well as on the popular holiday resort, Lake
Wawasee, 1n northeastern {ndiana. Charles Teetor 1s credited with developing a pedal-powered vehicle for
use on railroad tracks. The company expanded 1nto pistons, cylinders and piston rings for the internal com-
bustion engine. After several company name changes, Perfect Circle was adopted in 1924, and became
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part of DANA in 1963, (DANA) Werking also designed the Kmghts of Pythias Temple 1n Hagerstown of which
he was a-member, other fraternal lodge buildings, several churches, FPosey County Memorial Coliseum, at least
two movie theaters, Brookwvile Post Office, office and gate for Ravima Park in Richmond, and at least three
service stations,

Werking was active in his community. He achieved Thirty-second degree mason, and was a four-term, Republi-
can, Wayne County Commissioner, including one term as president, He died in 1251 n Richmond, Indiana.

School bulding desian and construction was not a priority in the years before the Center Township Grade and
High School was bult. Holding school in a suitable bulding was important, but recognizing how architecture
contributed to a conducive learning environment had not been realized. A 1915 comprehensive study encom-
passing “School Plant” locked exclusively at school conditions such as water, ighting, cleaning, samtation,
heat, but did little to address the bulding or type of construction. The lone exception was the recommenda-
tion for a stone or dry foundation. (Rogers, 1215.)

In1 923, a study by the Indiana Education Survey Commission noted Indiana had about 4,500 one-teacher
schoolhouses. With only 900 erected after {910, the majority of the remaning “box-like frame structures”
were poorly lit, poorly heated, poorly arranged and poorly maintaned. Rush County was lauded for abandon-
ing the one-teacher school in favor of two-teacher schools or consolidated schools, which were recom-
mended as the “best rural school buldings” that accommodate elementary and high school students. The
study makes the distinction between well-planned consolidated schools, usvally bult after 1210, and those
poorly planned, usvally bullt before 1210. (The Indiana Education Survey Commission. | 923.) Rush County
had two such consolidated schools by this 1223 survey, Arlington in West Central Rush County bullt in
1909, and Milroy m South central Rush County, buit n 1213, As yet, the east central county maintaned a
1909 High School and a two-rcom brick elementary school bult in 1212, By 1825, the need for more
elementary classroom space was met with a “portable” bulding erected in Mays adjacent to the brnick elemen-
tary school.

Conaitions were clearly not optimized for students served by the Center Township High School and the Mays
Elementary School. in the late | 920s yet another consolidation was glanned that wouid achieve better
educational envircnment for eastern Rush County and reduce the number of buldings to maintan. Architects
Werking and Son of Richmond, Indiana designed The Center Township Grade and Migh School with serviceabil-
ity, longewity and educational environment 11 mind.  The brick wall bullding has easily mamtained concrete
corridors and stawr halls, with lower portion of the walls finished with glazed brick. These easily cleanable,
durable surfaces made cleanliness achievable and relatively inexpensive.,

The layout of the building has an efficient use of space, and provides one wall of windows 1n each original
classrcom or assembly space. The windows supplemented intenor hght and mechanical ventilation.  Internor
restrooms for both airls and boys were provided on each of the three floors. This 13 an admirable achevement
in 1929 considering that one third of the school buldings surveyed in 1 242 had out door restroom facih-
ties. An onagmal important feature of the new school was the gymnasium mtegrated into the design. “Hoo-
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sier Hystena” propelled basketball to the fore of the Indiana Public Education experience. This was a wel-
come opportunity for Center Township to participate in extramural sports. There were enough male students
to participate in basketball, but not enough for a football team.

According to a study of Indiana Public Schools published in 1949, The Center Township Grade and thigh
School was bullt during Inciana schools most robust period of construction.  The. survey included 2278
schools bult from before |1 890 thrul 946, and analyzed the data in ten-year mcrements. The pernod be-
tween 1921 and {930, 501 new schools were constructed. More school first and second additions were

constructed during that time period as well, with 882 first additions and 298 second additions.  (Inchana
School Study Commission. 1 249.)

The type of desian and construction was analyzed, also. Five bulding types were identified, from type A (a
bullding constructed of entirely fire-restive matenals) to type E (a frame bullding with or without a slate roof).
The least common type was a school entirely constructed of fire-resistive materal. The most common type
was a bullding with exterior masonry walls and otherwise wood mterior and fimshes. The Center Township
Grade and High School falls at the mid-point between fire-resistive and fire-prone.  Extenor construction,
halis and starways were bult of concrete or masonry, and wood was used in the classrooms. This type of
construction was the second least common of the five types.

By 1949, 36% of the schools in Indiana had made at least one addition to the onginal buldings. Nearly
three-quarters of a century after 1ts construction, Center Township Grade and High School 15 noteworthy
considering these factors n combination: it was constructed during a period of robust expansion of consoli-

aated school: it was a relatively uncommon type of construction; and.t retans the ongmal design with no
additions.

Also on the site 15 a contemporary non-contributing totem pole constructed by students in 2002. To the
west of the school, but outside the neminated boundary, 15 an athletic field that has been in conbinuous use
over the lfetime of the school. At present there 15 2 contemporary chain link fence between the school and
the figld. A smalt frame concession standg 15 on the south side of the field. A contemporary open-sided
wood frame picnic shelter with stone hearth 15 located on the south side of the property between the
school and the athletic field, again, outside the nominated area.
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